
ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MEETING AGENDA 

*Agenda subject to change*

Ernest J. LaBaff Industrial Building, 19 Commerce Lane, Suite 1, Canton, New York 13617 

July 25, 2023  

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Public Notice July 19, 2023 

Public Comment 

Approval of 
Minutes 

June 27, 2023 ............................................................................................................... 1-3 

Financial Report: 

Committee Reports 

Staff Report Patrick Kelly 

Old Business None 

New Business Resolution:   Adopting a Policy for Providing Notice to Affected Taxing 
Jurisdictions ............................................................................................. 4-5 

Resolution:   Authorizing Letter of Resolution with the NYS Office of Parks, 
Recreation, and Historic Preservation and ESD....................................... 6-8 

Resolution:   Approving Resolution for Solitude Solar Russell County Rd 31 Microgrid, 
LLC ........................................................................................................ 9-22 

Resolution:   Authorizing Lease for 100 Paterson Street Building with Corning 
Incorporated ............................................................................................. 23 

Executive Session 

Adjournment 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 



DRAFT

ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 Meeting of June 27, 2023 

(Annual Meeting)  
CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Staples calls the ANNUAL MEETING to order at 1:00 PM in the main 
conference room at the Ernest J. LaBaff Industrial Building, Canton.   
   
ROLL CALL:  
Staples .....................  Present   McMahon ..............  Absent  
LaBaff ......................  Present   Morrill ...................    Present 
Blevins .....................  
Hall ..........................  

Absent  
Present  

 Reagen ..................  
 

Present  

A quorum is recognized.   
 
IDA Staff present: Patrick Kelly, Lori Sibley, Kimberly Gilbert, and Richard Williams.   
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public notifications sent June 20, 2023 to, at a minimum: newspapers designated for the 
publication of local laws and other matters required by law to be published; additional local media sources 
and websites. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  Mr. Gordon Woodcock, Director of Project Development for PIVOT Energy and 
Andy Gardner, Reporter for Johnson Newspapers are both present, neither offer any comment. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to accept the minutes of the May 23, 2023 meeting by Mr. LaBaff, 
seconded by Mr. Reagen.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  Ms. Gilbert reports on the April 2023 financial report, mentioning payment received 
from the County for the 2nd quarter installment of the Economic Development Agreement, in addition to 
expenditures for North American Forest Group that will be reimbursed through the Northern Border Regional 
Commission Grant, as well as ARPA award expenditures.  Additionally, all PILOT payments were received and 
distributed. Ms. Gilbert continues with the May 2023 financial report where she mentions costs for the 100 
Paterson Street property.  Motion to accept the April and May 2023 financial reports by Mr. LaBaff, seconded by 
Mr. Reagen.   Motion is approved by unanimous vote. 
   
COMMITTEE REPORTS:  Nominating Committee (LaBaff – Chair, Blevins and Reagen).  Nominating 
Committee Chairman Ernest LaBaff offers the following slate of officers:  Brian W. Staples (Chairman), Lynn 
Blevins (Vice-Chairman) and Ernest LaBaff (Secretary).  Hearing no other nominations, motion to accept the slate 
of officers made by Mr. LaBaff, seconded by Mr. Reagen.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  Mr. Kelly reports the following: 
 
Solar Projects:  So far this year, 15 solar PILOTs have been billed for approximately $290,000 in new PILOT 
revenue to the affected taxing jurisdictions.  Projections for January 2024 indicate over 20 solar PILOTS will 
be billed for approximately $390,000. 
 
Michels Power:  Michels Power has now moved out of the Canton Industrial Building and moved into the 
Massena Industrial Park Lot 19 Building. 
 
100 Paterson Street Building:  Phase III work, consisting of paving the front and back entranceways, as well 
as painting and metal sheeting the inside walls, is underway.   
 

Page 1



DRAFT

Downtown Revitalization Initiative (Massena Award): A Memorandum of Agreement with the Village of 
Massena will be presented under New Business today.  
 
Reappointments:  The terms of Brian Staples and Ernest LaBaff will expire in September 2023. Mr. LaBaff and 
Mr. Reagen motion/second to recommend to the County Board of Legislators that Mr. Staples and Mr. LaBaff be 
reappointed for another term.  Carried Unanimously.   
 
St. Lawrence County Center for Entrepreneurial Leadership (“CEL”):  Seven people graduated from the 2023 
CEL Training Program on June 5th.  This is the 3rd class and over 30 small business leaders in St. Lawrence 
County have now completed the program. Participants are pleased with the content of the program, with 
several former and recent participants recommending the course to other local business leaders.   
  
St. Lawrence County American Rescue Plan Act “ARPA”:  An agreement was formalized with the County, 
and we received reimbursement for expenditures paid for the initial round of awards. Mr. Kelly provides a 
brief overview of awards/amounts already allocated through various ARPA programs and amounts remaining 
to be allocated for each program. Further, Mr. Kelly provides a summary of the number of participants that 
have completed various training programs that are paid with ARPA funds. A similar report was given by Mr. 
Kelly to the County at a recent Finance Committee meeting.  Mr. Hall asks if there was any feedback from 
the County’s Finance Committee regarding the awards that have been approved to date.  Mr. Kelly responds 
that the County is pleased with the work that has gone into the process and businesses are very appreciative, 
adding that many have indicated that the awards have brought a great deal of value to them after experiencing 
financial loss as a result of the pandemic.  Mr. Reagen adds that the IDA provides a map to the County 
Legislators indicating where awards are going throughout the County.  This is very beneficial in showing how 
widespread the awards are in each district throughout the County.   
 
CDL-A Training Program:  Seaway Timber Harvesting has donated a trailer for the SUNY Canton’s CREST Center’s 
CDL-A program.  The trailer needed a modest amount of work, costing $5,000, to be made ready for use.   
 
Job Fairs:  St. Lawrence-Lewis BOCES held job fairs at each of their tech centers earlier this month.  This is 
the first attempt at having an event of this type at each of the centers.  Senior students with an interest in 
summer job opportunities, or full-time work after high school, had the opportunity to speak with over 30 
employers.  The feedback was very good and the BOCES Career and Technical Education Department 
anticipates the event will be held again next year.  Ms. Sibley assisted with outreach and invites to employers 
and attended each of the events.        
 
NYSEDC:  The New York State Economic Development Council held their Basic Introduction to Economic 
Development Course last week in Albany.  Mr. Kelly conducted a lecture for one of the classes at the event.  
 
North Country Alliance:  Staff attended the NCA Annual Meeting that was held last Wednesday in Saranac 
Lake.  
 
NEW BUSINESS:   
 
Resolution IDA-23-06-20:  Approving Resolution for PIVOT Solar NY 10, LLC:  The Cost Benefit 
Analysis/Project Evaluation documents have been distributed to the members for review.  Mr. Kelly provides 
a brief summary of the proposed 5 MW solar array project located in the Town of Oswegatchie.  A public 
hearing was held June 13th for consideration of the 15-year PILOT with no public comment.  Chairman Staples 
adds that the length of the project is expected to be 35-40 years.  Mr. LaBaff motions to approve Resolution 
IDA-23-06-20, seconded by Mr. Morrill.  The motion is approved by unanimous vote.   
 
Mr. Gordon Woodcock exits the meeting.   

Page 2



DRAFT

Resolution IDA-23-06-21:  Approving the Execution of a Memorandum of Agreement with the Town of 
Massena for the Downtown Revitalization Initiative: Mr. Kelly briefly describes the project and our role as 
we work with the Village of Massena to preserve the historic façade, while enhancing accessibility to the 
river.  The Memorandum of Agreement with the Village of Massena will serve as a guide to identifying the 
specific roles of each party involved in the project. Mr. LaBaff motions to approve Resolution IDA-23-06-
21, seconded by Mr. Reagen.  The motion is approved by unanimous vote.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Mr. LaBaff/Mr. Hall motion/second for executive session at 1:21 PM to review the 
employment and financial documents of specific companies.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  
At 1:32 PM Mr. Mr. LaBaff/Mr. Hall motion/second to return to regular session. The motion is approved by 
unanimous vote.    
 
Resolution IDA-23-06-22: Authorizing Allocations through the St. Lawrence County ARPA Economic 
Development and Tourism Funding Program: Mr. Hall motions to accept Resolution IDA-23-06-22, seconded 
by Mr. Reagen. Mr. LaBaff abstains.  The motion is approved by majority vote.   
 
OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: A motion to adjourn is made by Mr. LaBaff, seconded by Mr. Reagen. The meeting 
adjourns at 1: 32 PM by unanimous vote.      

        
 
_______________________________________ 
Mr. Ernest LaBaff, Secretary 

 

Page 3



ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
Resolution No. IDA–23-07–xx 

July 25, 2023 
 

ADOPTING A POLICY FOR PROVIDING NOTICE TO AFFECTED TAXING 
JURISDICTIONS 

 
WHEREAS, as of January 1, 2023, the State of New York updated its statutory 

requirements for Industrial Development Agencies and their notice procedures; and  
 
WHEREAS, the SLCIDA wishes to adopt a new notice policy in the form attached hereto 

as Schedule A; and   
 
WHEREAS, the policy will allow the SLCIDA to provide notice to affected taxing 

jurisdictions via electronic mail with “read-receipt requested”. In the event it is impracticable to 
transmit notice this way, Agency staff or counsel may transmit such notice via certified mail with 
return receipt requested.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the SLCIDA hereby adopts Exhibit A 

as its policy for providing notice to affected taxing jurisdictions.   
 
 

Move:   I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared this copy 
of this Resolution with the original record in this office, 
and that the same is a correct transcript thereof and of 
the whole of said original record. 

 
 

Second:   
VOTE AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT  
Blevins      

Hall      
LaBaff      

McMahon      
Morrill       Lori Sibley                                              July 25, 2023 
Reagen      
Staples      

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
NOTICE POLICY  

 
This policy has been duly adopted by the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency 
(the “Agency”) in accordance with Sections 859-a(7) of Title 1 of Article 18-A of the New York 
General Municipal Law (the “Act”) to establish procedures required by Sections 859-a(1-a) and 
874(4)(b) of the Act. 
 
Agency staff or counsel shall take the following action: 
 
1. Following the adoption by the Agency’s board of directors of a resolution required by 
Section 859- a(1) of the Act, and prior to the execution of project documents conferring benefits 
authorized by such resolution, the Agency shall deliver a copy of such resolution to the chief 
executive officer of each affecting taxing jurisdiction (including, with respect to any affected 
school district, the school district clerk and superintendent), via electronic mail, with “read-
receipt” requested. 
 
2. Whenever the Agency gives notice required by Section 874(4)(b) of the IDA Act of 
deviation from its uniform tax exemption policy established pursuant to Section 874(4)(a) of the 
Act, the Agency shall provide such deviation notice to the chief executive officer of each affecting 
taxing jurisdiction (including, with respect to any affected school district, the school district clerk 
and superintendent), via electronic mail, with “read-receipt” requested. 
 
3. In the event it is impracticable to transmit any such notice via electronic mail, with “read-
receipt” requested, Agency staff or counsel may transmit such notice via certified mail with return 
receipt requested. 
 

Page 5



ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
Resolution No. IDA-23-07-XX  

   July 25, 2023 
 

AUTHORIZING LETTER OF RESOLUTION WITH  
THE NYS OFFICE OF PARKS, RECREATION & HISTORIC PRESERVATION AND 

EMPIRE STATE DEVELOPMENT  
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Massena (“Village”) took title to the Former Massena School of 
Business (“School of Business”) property from the County which had possession due to tax 
delinquency by a tax foreclosure proceeding for unpaid ad valorem real property taxes, and   

WHEREAS, the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency (“SLCIDA”) supports 
the redevelopment of the School of Business into a community space while preserving the Main Street 
façade and recognizes the importance of the project for safety and economic development in the 
Village and for St. Lawrence County; and 

WHEREAS, Village of Massena was successful in applying for, and receiving, a Round 5 
DRI designation in December 2021 and, as part of the DRI award, the Village and the SLCIDA worked 
together to propose a project for the redevelopment of the School of Business site; and 

WHEREAS, the SLCIDA has experience developing or redeveloping properties and will 
provide bridge financing, project oversite and grant administration of the School of Business project; 
and  

 WHEREAS, the Village and the SLCIDA have entered into an agreement which outlines each 
parties’ responsibilities regarding the redevelopment of the School of Business site, and 

 WHEREAS, due to the historic nature of the School of Business, in order to move forward with 
the project a Letter of Resolution (attached) needs to be executed between the SLCIDA, the New York 
State Office of Parks, Recreation & Historic Preservation, and Empire State Development, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the St. Lawrence County 
Industrial Development Agency that the SLCIDA Chief Executive Officer is designated, authorized, 
empowered, and directed to execute the attached Letter of Resolution regarding the redevelopment of 
the School of Business site in Massena.  

 
Move:   I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared this copy of this 

Resolution with the original record in this office, and that the 
same is a correct transcript thereof and of the whole of said 
original record. 
 
 

Second:   
VOTE AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT  

Blevins      
Hall      
LaBaff      
McMahon      
Morrill       Lori Sibley                                                 July 25, 2023 
Reagen      
Staples      

 
 
 

Page 6



LETTER OF RESOLUTION AMONG  
THE NEW YORK STATE OFFICE OF PARKS, RECREATION & HISTORIC 

PRESERVATION,  
THE EMPIRE STATE DEVELOPMENT 

AND  
ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

REGARDING 22 MAIN STREET,  
VILLAGE OF MASSENA, ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY  

23PR03440 

WHEREAS, Massena School of Business intends to transform the former site located at 22 Main 
Street located in the Village of Massena into hardscape courtyard/transitional space with a 
mezzanine, that connects the downtown corridor with the riverwalk areas while preserving the 
historic building façade; and 

WHEREAS, the New York State Urban Development Corporation d/b/a Empire State Development 
(“ESD”) will be involved in administering funding associated with the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will demolish the building which is eligible to be listed in the State and 
National Registers of Historic Places while retaining and structurally supporting the façade; and 

WHEREAS, the involved agencies have consulted with the New York State Office of Parks, 
Recreation and Historic Preservation (“OPRHP”) in accordance with Section 14.09 of the Parks, 
Recreation and Historic Preservation Law (“NYSPRHPL”) enacted by the New York State Historic 
Preservation Act of 1980; and 

WHEREAS, based on the signed and stamped engineer’s report dated June 20, 2023 the building in 
its current condition is unsafe; and 

WHEREAS, the demolition of 22 Main Street constitutes an adverse impact under provisions of 
Section 14.09 and its implementing regulations (9 NYCRR Part 428); and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the involved agencies/parties that no feasible or prudent 
alternatives exist that would avoid or lessen the adverse impact to the historic resource associated 
with the progression of the undertaking; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with Section 14.09, OPRHP and ESD agree that the Project 
may proceed subject to the stipulations set forth below: 

STIPULATIONS 

St. Lawrence County IDA (the Project Sponsor) shall implement the Project in compliance with the 
following: 

1. The Project Sponsor will conduct a full historic and photo documentation of the building and 
its contextual setting; 
 

2. The Project Sponsor will produce and install an interpretative panel that tells the history of the 
building within Massena’s downtown business district;  
 

3. The Project sponsor will stabilize and structurally support the façade so the historic streetscape 
can be preserved; 

Page 7



 
4. If necessary, the Project sponsor will stabilize and structurally support the party walls; and 

 
5. If human remains are encountered at any point during this project, the Project Sponsor will 

adhere to OPRHP’s Human Remains Discovery Protocol (Attachment C). 

Other Terms and Conditions: 

1. Modifications, amendments, or termination of this agreement as necessary shall be 
accomplished by the signatories in the same manner as the original agreement. 
 

2. Disputes regarding the completion of the terms of this agreement shall be resolved by the 
signatories. 

 
3. This Agreement may be amended to add other State agencies as parities if it is subsequently 

determined they also have jurisdiction for this undertaking. 
 

4. Any amendment must be agreed upon in writing by all parties to this agreement. 
 

5. This LOR will expire if the undertaking is not completed within five (5) years from the date 
of effect. The duration of this LOR may be extended only upon approval of all signatories. 

This LOR shall take effect on the date it is signed by the last signatory and will remain in effect until 
the Stipulations set forth herein have been met. 

SIGNATURE (3) PAGES 
FOLLOW 

Page 8



ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
APPROVING RESOLUTION 

Solitude Solar Russell County Rd 31 Microgrid, LLC Project Number 4001-23-01 
Resolution No. IDA–23-07–xx 

July 25, 2023 
 

A regular meeting of the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“SLCIDA”) was convened on July 25, 2023 at 1:00 P.M., local time, in the Main 
Conference Room of the Ernest J. LaBaff Industrial Building, 19 Commerce Lane, Canton, 
New York. 

 
The meeting was called to order by__________________, and upon roll being called, 

the following members of the SLCIDA were: 
 

MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT 
Blevins, Lynn   
Hall, Mark C.   
LaBaff, Ernest   
McMahon, Andrew   
Morrill, Steven   
Reagen, James   
Staples, Brian W.   
 
The following persons were ALSO PRESENT:  Staff (Patrick Kelly, Robert Ahlfeld, 

Kimberly Gilbert and Lori Sibley). 
 
After the meeting had been duly called to order, ______________ announced that, 

among the purposes of the meeting, was to consider and take action on certain matters 
pertaining to proposed project for the benefit of Solitude Solar Russell County Rd 31 
Microgrid, LLC. 

 
On motion duly made by ________________________ and seconded by 

____________________________ the following resolution was placed before members of 
the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency: 

 
A RESOLUTION (1) AUTHORIZING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
CERTAIN PROJECT (AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW) BY 
SOLITUDE SOLAR RUSSELL COUNTY RD 21 MICROGRID, LLC (THE 
“COMPANY”) A NEW YORK LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY; (2) 
ADOPTING FINDINGS PURSUANT TO THE STATE 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT IN RELATION TO THE 
PROJECT; (3) AUTHORIZNG FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO THE 
COMPANY FOR THE PROJECT IN THE FORM OF (A) A SALES AND 
USE TAX EXEMPTION FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS RELATED 
TO THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT, AND 

Page 9



EQUIPPING OF THE PROJECT; AND (B) A REAL PROPERTY TAX 
ABATEMENT STRUCTURED THROUGH A PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-
TAX AGREEMENT (“PILOT AGREEMENT”) IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
A DEVIATION FROM THE AGENCY’S UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION 
POLICY MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED HEREIN; (4) 
AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A LEASEHOLD INTEREST IN 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY AND THE IMPROVEMENTS THEREON 
IN RELATION TO UNDERTAKING THE PROJECT; AND (5) 
APPROVING THE FORM, SUBSTANCE AND EXECUTION OF 
RELATED DOCUMENTS. 

WHEREAS, Title 1 of Article 18 A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 
New York (the “Enabling Act”) was duly enacted into law as Chapter 1030 of the Laws of 
1969 of the State of New York (“State”); and 

WHEREAS, the Enabling Act authorizes and provides for the creation of industrial 
development agencies for the benefit of the several counties, cities, villages and towns in the 
State and empowers such agencies, among other things, to acquire, construct, reconstruct, 
lease, improve, maintain, equip and dispose of land and any building or other improvement, 
and all real and personal properties, including, but not limited to, machinery and equipment 
deemed necessary in connection therewith, whether or not now in existence or under 
construction which shall be suitable for manufacturing, warehousing, civic, commercial and 
research facilities, including recreation facilities, in order to advance job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State and to improve 
their standard of living; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency was created, pursuant to and in accordance with the 
provisions of the Enabling Act, by Chapter 358 of the Laws of 1971 of the State, 
(collectively, with the Enabling Act, the “Act”), and is empowered under the Act to 
undertake the Project (as hereinafter defined) in order to so promote job opportunities, health, 
general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State and improve their 
standard of living; and 

WHEREAS, the Company previously presented an application (the “Application”) to 
the Agency, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency 
consider undertaking a project, as further described in Exhibit A (the “Project”) consisting 
of: (A) the acquisition of a sub-leasehold interest in an approximately 11.25 acre parcel of 
land, being a portion of a 97.1 acre parcel of land, located at 1040 County Road 21, Town of 
Russell, St. Lawrence County, New York 13684 (the “Land”); (B) the construction on the 
Land of an approximately 11.25 acre 2.2 MWac ground-mounted photovoltaic solar energy 
system including panels, racking, inverters, electrical cables, grid interconnection, site 
preparation, access roads and any other required improvements (the “Improvements”); and 
(C) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of related fixtures, machinery, 
equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, the “Equipment” and, together 
with the Land and Improvements, the “Facility”), and (D) the sub sub-lease of the Agency’s 
interest in the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a leaseback agreement; and  

Page 10



 WHEREAS, the Company further requested a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform 
Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”) in the form of a PILOT Agreement with a term of 20 years 
(the “Deviation”), which Deviation exceeds the Agency’s standard 10-year period of 
abatement under the Agency’s UTEP; and 

 WHEREAS, as required by the Agency’s UTEP the consent of the Town of Russell 
(the “Town”), and the Hermon-DeKalb Central School District (the “School District”) was 
required prior to the Agency approval of the Deviation; and 

 WHEREAS, by a Resolution adopted May 8, 2023, the School District consented to 
the Deviation, and, by Resolution adopted June 20, 2023, the Town consented to the 
Deviation; and 

 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in making a determination whether the acquisition, 
construction, installation and equipping of the Facility will be in conformance with Article 8 
of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New 
York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations (the “Regulations”) adopted 
pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of New York 
(collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the Company has submitted to the Agency a 
completed Full Environmental Assessment Form-Part 1 dated May 23, 2022 and Parts 2 and 
3 dated July 12, 2022 (the “EAF”) with respect to the Project; and 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to SEQRA, the Agency has been informed that (1) the NYS 
Department of Environmental Conservation (the “NYSDEC”) was designated to act as “lead 
agency” with respect to the Project, and (2) the NYSDEC issued a Determination of Non-
Significance on August 2, 2022 (the “Negative Declaration”) determining that (a) the 
acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility will result in no significant 
adverse impacts on the environment and (b) an environmental impact statement need not be 
prepared with respect to the Project; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) was held on July 11, 2023, so that all 
persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the financial assistance contemplated by 
the Agency or the location or nature of the Facility, could be heard; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing was published in North County This Week on June 
30 and in the Watertown Daily Times on July 2, 2023 and such notice (together with proof of 
publication), was substantially in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit B; and 

WHEREAS, the report of the Hearing is annexed hereto as Exhibit C; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency has been requested to enter into (a) a sublease agreement by 
and between the Company and the Agency whereby the Company will sublease the Facility 
to the Agency (the “Lease Agreement”) and (b) a leaseback agreement by and between the 
Agency and Company whereby the Agency sub subleases the Facility back to the Company 
(the “Leaseback Agreement”); and 

Page 11



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the St. Lawrence County Industrial 
Development Agency as follows: 

Section 1. Based upon the EAF, the NYSDEC, as Lead Agency under SEQRA, 
and coordinated review with Involved and Interested Agencies, determined that the Project, 
involving the construction, installation and equipping of the Facility, is a Type I action as 
contemplated by 6 NYCRR Section 617.5(c)(1), and that there will be not have a “significant 
effect” on the environment and, therefore, an environmental impact statement will not be 
prepared.  This determination constitutes negative declaration for purposes of SEQRA, which 
is binding on the Agency. 

Section 2. The Agency hereby finds and determines: 

a. By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and 
to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 
 

b. The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and 
 
c. The acquisition, construction, improvement and equipping of the Facility and the 

leasing of the Facility to the Company, will promote and maintain the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of 
St. Lawrence County (the “County”), and the State of New York and improve 
their standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; and 

 
d. Based upon representations of the Company and counsel to the Company, the 

Facility conforms with the local zoning laws and planning regulations and all 
regional and local land use plans for the area in which the Facility is located; and 

 
e. The Facility and the operations conducted therein do not have a significant effect 

on the environment, as determined in accordance with Article 8 of the 
Environmental Conservation Law of the State of New York and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder; and 

 
f. It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to sublease the Facility 

back to the Company; and 
 
g. The Lease Agreement will be an effective instrument whereby the Agency leases 

the Facility from the Company; and 
 
h. The Leaseback Agreement will be an effective instrument whereby the Agency 

leases the Facility to the Company, and by which the Agency and the Company 
set forth the terms and conditions of their agreement regarding payments-in-lieu 
of taxes, the Company agrees to comply with all Environmental Laws (as defined 
therein) applicable to the Facility and will describe the circumstances in which the 
Agency may recapture some or all of the benefits granted to the Company; and 

Page 12



i. The Facility is an 11.25+/- acre parcel of land, being a portion of a 97.1+/- acre 
parcel of land, where the Company will install a 2.2 MW-AC ground-mounted 
photovoltaic solar energy system including panels, racking, inverters, electrical 
cables, grid interconnection, site preparation, access roads and any other required 
improvements.  The Facility, being located in the Town of Russell; and   

 
j. The Deviation incentivizes the Company to complete the Project, which is 

expected to have a material positive impact on further economic development 
projects in the Town and the County; and 

 
k. Based upon the representations of the Company, the transactions contemplated by 

the Leaseback Agreement shall not result in the removal of a plant from one area 
of the State to another area of the State. 

Section 3. The Agency has assessed all material information included in 
connection with the application for financial assistance submitted by the Company, including 
but not limited to, the cost-benefit analysis prepared by the Agency and such information has 
provided the Agency a reasonable basis for its decision to provide the Financial Assistance to 
the Company. 

Section 4. In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to:  
(i) sublease the Land and the Improvements from the Company pursuant to the Lease 
Agreement, (ii) execute, deliver and perform the Lease Agreement, (iii) sub sublease the 
Facility to the Company pursuant to the Leaseback Agreement, and (iv) execute, deliver and 
perform the Leaseback Agreement. 

Section 5. The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire the real property and 
personal property described in Schedule A and Schedule B, respectively, to the Leaseback 
Agreement, and to do all things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and 
all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such acquisition are hereby approved, 
ratified and confirmed. 

Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire the Facility and to do all 
things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken 
by the Agency with respect to such acquisition are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.  

Section 7. The Agency hereby authorizes and approves the following 
economic benefits to be granted to the Company in connection with the construction, 
improvement and equipping of the Facility in the form of (i) exemptions from sales and use 
taxes in an amount not to exceed $22,000.00 in connection with the purchase or lease of 
equipment, building materials, services or other personal property, and (ii) the abatement of 
real property taxes (as set forth in the PILOT Schedule attached as Exhibit D hereof), 
consistent with the policies of the Agency. 

Section 8.     Subject to the provisions of this resolution, the Company is herewith 
and hereby appointed the agent of the Agency to acquire, construct, improve and equip 
the Facility. The Company is hereby empowered to delegate its status as agent of the 

Page 13



Agency to its agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers, 
vendors and such other parties as the Company may choose in order to acquire, construct, 
improve and equip the Facility. The Agency hereby appoints the agents, subagents, 
contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, vendors and suppliers of the Company as 
agents of the Agency solely for purposes of making sales or leases of goods, services and 
supplies to the Facility, and any such transaction between any agent, subagent, contractor, 
subcontractor, materialmen, vendor or supplier, and the Company, as agent of the 
Agency, shall be deemed to be on behalf of the Agency and for the benefit of the 
Facility. This agency appointment expressly excludes the purchase by the Company of 
any motor vehicles, including any cars, trucks, vans or buses which are licensed by the 
Department of Motor Vehicles for use on public highways or streets. The Company shall 
indemnify the Agency with respect to any transaction of any kind between and among the 
agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, vendors and/or suppliers 
and the Company, as agent of the Agency. The aforesaid appointment of the Company 
as agent of the Agency to acquire, construct, improve and equip the Facility shall expire 
at the earlier of (a) the completion of such activities and improvements, (b) a date which the 
Agency designates, or (c) the date on which the Company has received exemptions from 
sales and use taxes in an amount not to exceed $22,000.00 in connection with the 
purchase or lease of equipment, building materials, services or other personal property; 
provided however, such appointment may be extended at the discretion of the Agency, 
upon the written request of the Company if such activities and improvements are not 
completed by such time. The aforesaid appointment of the Company is subject to the 
completion of the transaction and the execution of the documents contemplated by this 
resolution. 

Section 9. The Company hereby agrees to comply with Section 875 of the Act.  
The Company further agrees that the exemption of sales and use tax provided pursuant to the 
Act and the appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency pursuant to this Authorizing 
Resolution is subject to termination and recapture of benefits pursuant to Section 875 of the 
Act and the Leaseback Agreement. 

Section 10.  The form and substance of the Agency Documents, as hereinafter 
defined, to which the Agency is a party (each in substantially the forms presented to or 
approved by the Agency and which, prior to the execution and delivery thereof, may be 
redated and renamed) are hereby approved. 

Section 11.   

a. The Chairman, the Executive Director of the Agency or any member of the 
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the 
Lease Agreement and the Leaseback Agreement to which the Agency is a party, 
all in substantially the forms thereof presented to this meeting with such changes, 
variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman, the Director of the Agency 
or any member of the Agency shall approve, and such other related documents as 
may be, in the judgment of the Executive Director and counsel to the Agency, 
necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution 

Page 14



(hereinafter collectively called the “Agency Documents”).  The execution thereof 
by the Chairman, the Executive Director of the Agency or any member of the 
Agency shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 
 

b. The Chairman, the Executive Director of the Agency or any member of the 
Agency are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any 
additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant 
to the Leaseback Agreement). 

Section 12. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and 
things required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute 
and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, pay all such fees, 
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the 
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes 
of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, 
covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the Agency. 

Section 13. Any expenses incurred by the Agency with respect to the Facility shall 
be paid by the Company. By acceptance hereof, the Company agrees to pay such expenses 
and further agrees to indemnify the Agency, its members, directors, employees and agents 
and hold the Agency and such persons harmless against claims for losses, damage or injury 
or any expenses or damages incurred as a result of action taken by or on behalf of the Agency 
in good faith with respect to the Facility. 

Section 14. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.  

MEMBER YEA NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Blevins, Lynn     
Hall, Mark C.     
LaBaff, Ernest     
McMahon, Andrew     
Morrill, Steven     
Reagen, James     
Staples, Brian W.     

 
The Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 

  

Page 15



STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF ST. LAWRENCE ) ss.: 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the St. 
Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution 
contained therein, held on July 25, 2023, with the original thereof on file in my office, and 
that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such 
resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the 
subject matters therein referred to. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and 
that public notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with 
such Article 7. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the Directors of the Agency 
present throughout said meeting. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full 
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand of said Agency as of July 25, 
2023. 

 

           
        Mr. Ernest LaBaff, Secretary 

 

 

 

  

Page 16



EXHIBIT A 
 
 

1. 
Applicant Name/ 
Project Number: 

SOLITUDE SOLAR RUSSELL COUNTY RD 21 
MICROGRID, LLC   
Project # 

2. 

Project Description: 
SOLITUDE SOLAR RUSSELL COUNTY RD 21 MICROGRID, LLC plans to 
undertake a project (the “Project”) consisting of (A) the acquisition of a sub-leasehold 
interest in an approximately 11.25 acre parcel of land, being a portion of a 97.1 acre 
parcel of land, located at 1040 County Road 21, Town of Russell, St. Lawrence County, 
New York 13684 (the “Land”); (B) the construction on the Land of an approximately 
11.25 acre 2.2 MWac ground-mounted photovoltaic solar energy system including 
panels, racking, inverters, electrical cables, grid interconnection, site preparation, access 
roads and any other required improvements (the “Improvements”); and (C) the 
acquisition and installation therein and thereon of related fixtures, machinery, 
equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, the “Equipment” and, 
together with the Land and Improvements, the “Facility”), and (D) the sub sub-lease of 
the Agency’s interest in the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a leaseback 
agreement. 

  

3. Type of Financial Assistance 
Requested: 

Exemption from Sales and Use taxes on 
purchases and rentals of goods and 
services relating to the undertaking of 
the "Project" as described above. 
 
Partial Real Property Tax Abatement 
through a PILOT. 
 

4. Total Amount of Project: $3,263,916 
5. Benefited Project Amount: $3,263,916 

6. 

Estimated value of NYS Sales & local 
sales and use tax exemption to be 
provided to the Company for this 
Project: 

$22,000 

7. PILOT Structure and Estimated Net 
Exemption from PILOT 20 Year PILOT 

8. Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption N/A 

9. Full-time Equivalent Jobs to be 
Retained as a Result of the Project: 0 

10. Full-Time Equivalent Jobs to be 
Created as a Result of the Project: 0 

11. Expiration of the Financial Assistance: 2044 
  

Page 17



EXHIBIT B 
 

ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Notice is hereby given that a public hearing (the “Public Hearing”) pursuant to 

Section 859-a(2) of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York (the “Act”) will be 
held by the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the 11th 
day of July, 2023 at 10:00 a.m., local time, in-person at the Town of Russell, Town Hall, 4 
Pestle Street (Meeting Room), Russell, New York and via Zoom meeting.  Instructions on 
how to join the Zoom meeting or how to attend in-person are posted on the Agency’s website 
at www.slcida.com.  Members of the public may attend by viewing and commenting on the 
Project and the benefits to be granted to the Company (as defined below) by the Agency 
during the Public Hearing by logging into the Zoom meeting: 

Topic:  2023-0711_Public Hearing – Solitude Solar Russell County Rd 21 Microgrid, LLC 
Time:  July 11, 2023 10:00 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89051785460?pwd=V1ZVMnlpTmM0VDBzaF15RFdMQ0MzU
T09 
Meeting ID: 890 5178 5460 
Passcode: 805779 
One tap mobile 
+16469313860,,89051785460#,,,,*805779# US 
+19292056099,,89051785460#,,,,*805779# US (New York) 
  
Dial by your location 
+1 646 931 3860 US 
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
 

SOLITUDE SOLAR RUSSELL COUNTY RD 21 MICROGRID, LLC, a New York 
limited liability company (the “Company”), has requested the assistance of the St. Lawrence 
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with a certain project (the “Project”) 
consisting of (A) the acquisition of a sub-leasehold interest in an approximately 11.25 acre 
parcel of land, being a portion of a 97.1 acre parcel of land, located at 1040 County Road 21, 
Town of Russell, St. Lawrence County, New York 13684 (the “Land”); (B) the construction 
on the Land of an approximately 11.25 acre 2.2 MWac ground-mounted photovoltaic solar 
energy system including panels, racking, inverters, electrical cables, grid interconnection, site 
preparation, access roads and any other required improvements (the “Improvements”); and 
(C) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of related fixtures, machinery, 
equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, the “Equipment” and, together 
with the Land and Improvements, the “Facility”), and (D) the sub sub-lease of the Issuer’s 
interest in the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a leaseback agreement. 

Page 18

http://www.slcida.com/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89051785460


The Company will own a leasehold interest in the Facility from the current owner 
through a long-term lease. The Agency will acquire an interest in the Facility. The financial 
assistance contemplated by the Agency will consist generally of the exemption from taxation 
expected to be claimed by the Company as a result of the Agency taking an interest in, 
possession or control (by lease, license or otherwise) of the Facility, or of the Company 
acting as the agent of the Agency, consisting of (i) an exemption from state and local sales 
and use tax with respect to the construction and renovation of the Facility; and (ii) an 
exemption from general real property taxation with respect to the Facility, which exemption 
shall be offset, in whole or in part, by contractual payments in lieu of taxes (the “PILOT”) by 
the Company for the benefit of the affected tax jurisdictions. 

A representative of the Agency will be at the above stated place and time to hear all 
persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the location or nature of the Facility, or 
the proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency.  At the hearing, all 
persons will have the opportunity to review the application for financial assistance filed by 
the Company with the Agency and an analysis of the costs and benefits of the proposed 
Project. In addition, at, or prior to, such hearing, interested parties may submit to the Agency 
written materials pertaining to such matters.  Such materials may be submitted to the Agency 
at 19 Commerce Lane, Suite 1, Canton, New York 13617, or at rwilliams@slcida.com and 
must be received no later than 10:00 am on day prior to Public Hearing.  Written statements 
provided to the Agency regarding the project will also become part of the record of public 
hearing. A transcript of the public hearing will be made available at a later date.   

Please check the meeting information posted on the Agency website 
(www.slcida.com) to access instructions to join the meeting and to find copies of the 
application and the cost benefit analysis.   

DATED:  June 26, 2023                                     ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY  
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

mailto:rwilliams@slcida.com
http://www.slcida.com/


EXHIBIT C 
 

REPORT OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON July 11, 2023 
ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

RE: Solitude Solar Russell County Rd 21 Microgrid, LLC 
  

Richard Williams of the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency called the public hearing to 
order at 10:00 AM, local time, in-person and via Zoom, and stated that the minutes of this public hearing 
would be recorded.  
 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89051785460?pwd=V1ZVMnlpTmM0VDBzaF15RFdMQ0MzUT09 
Meeting ID: 890 5178 5460 
Passcode: 805779 
One tap mobile  
+16469313860,,89051785460#,,,,*805779# US 
+19292056099,,89051785460#,,,,*805779# US (New York) 
a public hearing at 10:00 AM local time, in-person at the Town of Russell, Town Hall, 4 Pestle Street 
(Meeting Room), Russell, New York 
 
Public in Attendance:  Alicia R. Legland, Associate with Hodgson Russ LLP.  
  
Mr. Williams then read the following: 
 
 We are in-person and streaming live via zoom.  
 

SOLITUDE SOLAR RUSSELL COUNTY RD 21 MICROGRID, LLC has submitted an application 
to the Agency, a copy of which has been posted to our website and is on file at the office of the Agency.  
The Application requests the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) for the benefit of the 
Company,  

 
The Project consists of the (A) the acquisition of a sub-leasehold interest in an approximately 

11.25 acre parcel of land, being a portion of a 97.1 acre parcel of land, located at 1040 County Road 21, 
Town of Russell, St. Lawrence County, New York.  The construction on the Land of an approximately 
11.25 acre 2.2 MWac ground-mounted photovoltaic solar array including panels, racking, inverters, 
electrical cables, grid interconnection, site preparation, access roads and any other required 
improvements. 

 
All of the foregoing to constitute a solar energy generating facility (B) the granting of certain 

“financial assistance” with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain real 
property taxes, real estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial 
Assistance”); and (C) the lease or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may 
be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency. 
 

The Agency is considering whether (A) to undertake the Project and (B) to provide certain 
exemptions from taxation, which may include (1) an exemption from state and local sales and use tax with 
respect to the construction and renovation (2) exemption from mortgage recording taxes, transfer taxes 
(3) potential exemption from real property taxes (but not including special assessments and special ad 
valorem levies), if any, subject to the obligation of the Company to make payments in lieu of taxes with.   

 

Page 20



The Project is not consistent with the Agency’s uniform tax exemption policy, the Agency has 
followed procedures for deviation from such policy prior to granting such portion of the Financial 
Assistance. 
 

The Agency has not yet made a determination pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental 
Conservation Law (the “SEQR Act”) regarding the potential environmental impact of the Project.  This 
will be addressed at the next Board meeting of the Agency. 
 
Public Comment: No public comment was made. 
 
There being no comments, the Public Hearing was closed at 10:15 AM. 

 
By: Richard Williams 
For: St. Lawrence County Industrial 

Page 21



EXHIBIT D 
 

Table for In-Lieu-of-Taxes Payment: 
St. Lawrence County, Town of Russell,  

and 
Hermon-DeKalb Central School District 

 
The St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency will bill the amounts 
listed on the table below to the respective taxing authority based upon the pro rata 
share for the current tax year. 

Taxable Status Date:  March 1, 2024 

Tax Year Beginning:  School District   2024/2025 

    Town and County   2025 

$5,000 per MW for the first year, resulting in $11,000.00 to the School District, Town and 
County, on a pro rata basis.   

The amount would increase by 2% each year for 20. 

PILOT term would be 20 years 

YEAR SCHOOL TOWN/COUNTY PAYMENT 
1 2024/2025 2025  $11,000.00  
2 2025/2026 2026  $11,220.00  
3 2026/2027 2027  $11,444.40  
4 2027/2028 2028  $11,673.29  
5 2028/2029 2029  $11,906.75  
6 2029/2030 2030  $12,144.89  
7 2030/2031 2031  $12,387.79  
8 2031/2032 2032  $12,635.54  
9 2032/2033 2033  $12,888.25  
10 2033/2034 2034  $13,146.02  
11 2034/2035 2035  $13,408.94  
12 2035/2036 2036  $13,677.12  
13 2036/2037 2037  $13,950.66  
14 2037/2038 2038  $14,229.67  
15 2038/2039 2039  $14,514.27  
16 2039/2040 2040  $14,804.55  
17 2040/2041 2041  $15,100.64  
18 2041/2042 2042  $15,402.66  
19 2042/2043 2043  $15,710.71  
20 2043/2044 2044  $16,024.92  

 

Page 22



 
 

ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
Resolution No. 23-07-XX 

July 25, 2023 
 

AUTHORIZING LEASE FOR 100 PATERSON STREET BUILDING WITH  
CORNING INCORPORATED 

 
WHEREAS, the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is 

authorized and empowered by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 
New York (the "State") as amended, and Chapter 358 of the Laws of 1971 of the State, as amended 
(collectively, the "Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of industrial, manufacturing, 
warehousing, commercial, research, and recreation facilities, including industrial pollution control 
facilities, railroad facilities and certain horse racing facilities, for the purpose of promoting, 
attracting, encouraging and developing recreation and economically sound commerce and industry to 
advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the 
State, to improve their recreation opportunities, prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent 
unemployment and economic deterioration; and  

 
WHEREAS, CORNING INCORPORATED, having a need for warehousing space, has 

requested that the SLCIDA consider a Lease Agreement for approximately 20,000 square feet of 
space within the 100 Paterson Street building in the City of Ogdensburg, and 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency has negotiated a 
lease agreement with CORNING INCORPORATED for this space, and 

 
WHEREAS, there has been enacted into law Article 8 of the New York Environmental 

Conservation Law, Chapter 612 of the 1975 Laws of the State of New York, as amended (the 
“Environmental Act”), which provides for the review of certain “actions” undertaken by State and 
local agencies for the purpose of regulating such activities in order that proper consideration be given 
to the prevention of environmental damage; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with the Environmental Act, the SLCIDA 

conducted an environmental review of the project and has found that the project will not have a 
significant adverse impact on the environment will not have significant effect on the environment 
within the meaning of the Environmental Act and Regulations. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the St. Lawrence County Industrial 

Development Agency does hereby authorize and direct its Chief Executive Officer, with SLCIDA 
Counsel’s advice, to execute the aforementioned lease with CORNING INCORPORATED, for two 
years with renewal options. 
 
 

Move:   I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared this copy of 
this Resolution with the original record in this office, and 
that the same is a correct transcript thereof and of the 
whole of said original record. 
 
 
/s/ 

Second:   
VOTE AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT  

Blevins      
Hall      
LaBaff      
McMahon      
Morrill       
Reagen         Lori Sibley                                                        July 25, 2023 
Staples      

 

Page 23


	2023-0725_MeetingAgenda_IDA
	July 25, 2023

	PK 2023-0627_IDA_MeetingMinutes
	Meeting of June 27, 2023
	(Annual Meeting)
	CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Staples calls the ANNUAL MEETING to order at 1:00 PM in the main conference room at the Ernest J. LaBaff Industrial Building, Canton.
	ROLL CALL:
	PUBLIC NOTICE: Public notifications sent June 20, 2023 to, at a minimum: newspapers designated for the publication of local laws and other matters required by law to be published; additional local media sources and websites.

	IDA-23-07-XX_Adopting-Notice-Policy-For-ATJs
	IDA-23-07-XX_School of Business Letter of Resolution SHPO
	IDA-23-07-XX_Approving Resolution Solitude Solar
	IDA-23-07-XX_Corning Incorporated 100 Paterson Lease
	AUTHORIZING LEASE FOR 100 PATERSON STREET BUILDING WITH
	CORNING INCORPORATED




